
 
Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid 

 

Customer  Services 
Executive Director:  Douglas Hendry 

 
Municipal Buildings, Albany Street, Oban, PA34 4AW 

Tel:  01631 567945 
e.mail – Danielle.finlay@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

 
19 August 2013 

 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
A meeting of the OBAN LORN & THE ISLES COMMUNITY SAFETY FORUM will be held in the 
OBAN FIRE STATION, SOROBA ROAD, OBAN on MONDAY, 26 AUGUST 2013 at 2:30 PM, 
which you are requested to attend. 
 
 

Douglas Hendry 
Executive Director - Customer Services 

 

 
BUSINESS 

 
 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 8 MAY 2013(Pages 1 - 6) 

 
 3. PARTNER UPDATES 

 
  (a) Police Scotland  

 
  (b) Scotland Fire and Rescue  

 
  (c) Lochwatch Loch Awe  

 
  (d) Argyll and Bute Council  

 
 4. UPDATES FROM SUB-GROUPS 

 
  (a) Anti-Social Behaviour  

 
  (b) Vulnerable Persons  

 
  (c) Environmental Safety  

 
 5. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: WILD CAMPING 
  Report by Access Manager (Pages 7 - 12) 

 

Public Document Pack



 6. GRASS FIRES 
 

 7. NO COLD CALLING 
 

 8. OBAN/CONNEL BACK ROAD 
  Report by Head of Roads and Amenity Services (Pages 13 - 14) 

 
 9. RECENT INCIDENTS OF VANDALISM AT DUNBEG 
  Verbal update from Police Scotland  

 
 10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 

 ARGYLL AND BUTE COMMUNITY SAFETY FORUM 
 
 Contact: Danielle Finlay                        Tel. No: 01631 567945 
 



 
MINUTES of MEETING of OBAN LORN & THE ISLES COMMUNITY SAFETY FORUM held in 

the CORRAN HALLS, OBAN  

on WEDNESDAY, 8 MAY 2013  

 

 

Present: Councillor Louise Glen-Lee (Chair) 
 

 Councillor Alistair MacDougall 
Martin Hill, LochWatch Loch Awe 
Inspector Julie McLeish, Police Scotland 
Stephen Doogan, Argyll and Bute Council 
Iain MacKinnon, Argyll and Bute Council 
John Heron, Argyll and Bute Council  

 
 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

   
Apologies for absence were received from:- 
 
Mike Robertson 
Iona MacPhail, ACHA 
Verina Litster, Strathclyde Fire 
Caroline Henderson, NHS Highland 
Mandy Sheridan, ABC Council 
June Graham, ABC Council 
Carol Keeley, ABC Council 
Margaret Dalgleish, ABC Council 
 

 2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 11 FEBRUARY 2013 

   
The Minutes of the Meeting of 11th February 2013 were approved as a 
correct record. 
 

 3. PARTNERSHIP UPDATES 

 

  (a) POLICE SCOTLAND 
    

Inspector Julie McLeish from Police Scotland updated the Group on 
the new Police Scotland Team and advised it was working 
comfortably and well. 
 
She informed the Group that the new Chief Inspector Alistair 
Davidson had joined the force.  
 
 
In the light of the recent tragedy off the cost of Oban Councillor Glen-
Lee asked what happens in the event of a missing person? (i.e. what 
resources are available from which services and how they interact) 
 
Inspector McLeish advised there are enquiries made and the marine 
branch gets involved.  The Coast Guard also get involved and it is 
then handed over to the Police when the person is no longer alive. 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



Councillor Glen-Lee thanked Julie and everyone else involved for all 
their hard work. 
 

  (b) FIRE SERVICE 
    

Martin Hill from the Fire Service updated the Forum on the new 
Scottish Fire and Rescue Service and advised all was going well and 
they were maintaining the partnership links set up. under Strathclyde 
Fire and Rescue  
 
He informed the Forum that the new Area Commander is Paul 
Connelly who had started in post and is covering both Argyll and 
Bute and East and West Dunbartonshire. 
 
Martin advised that the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service are to 
shortly donate £3097 to Oban Lifesavers Club for water safety 
projects.  This will be appearing in the Oban Times over the next 
couple of weeks. 
 
The Area Governance officer advised the Forum that the timeframe 
for the project to plot a map of motorbike and fatal accidents and 
publish this as a safety initiative to garages and similar locations has 
slipped a little.  The transfer to the Unified service has meant that the 
necessary) data has not been easily accessible however this is now 
resolved and an update will be available at the next Community 
Safety Forum. 
 
Councillor Glen-Lee informed the Forum about Scottish Fire and 
Rescue’s new twitter page and thought this was a brilliant idea for 
keeping people up to date.   
 

  (c) ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL 
    

All updates provided elsewhere in the agenda. 
 
 

  (d) LOCHWATCH LOCH AWE 
    

Murray Humphries from Lochwatch Loch Awe updated the Forum on 
recent events. 
 
He advised that the Lochwatch thermal imaging and night vision kit 
had been deployed during the search for the missing fisherman at 
Kilchurn in February.  Sadly, the person was not found until a week 
after he went missing when Police divers located him in the river 
downstream from the railway. 
 
He advised that Roseanna Cunningham MSP, the Scottish 
Community Safety Minister along with Michael Russell MSP; Jamie 
McGrigor MSP; Alan Reid MP, local Councillors and representatives 
of the emergency services had attended a presentation on the work 
of Lochwatch at the Loch Awe Hotel in early April and that this had 
been well received. 

Page 2



 
There was coverage in the Herald, the Oban Times and BBC Alba.  
All those present supported the work of LochWatch and the Minister 
backed the campaign to have a safety boat on the loch. 
 
Murray informed the Forum that the lifejacket initiative is still going 
strong with continued sales http://www.lapb.org.uk/lifejacket/ 
 
He advised that a slightly revised voluntary Code of Practice has 
been drawn up for the loch.  The changes relate to the speed that 
boats should do while underway and that actual suggested speeds 
have been removed from the Code. 
 
He also advised that Glenorchy and Innishail Community Council 
have kindly donated £150 towards new safety signs.  The money is 
coming from a fund held by the Community Council and provided by 
the An Suidhe Wind Farm Fund. Murray demonstrated an example 
of their signage. 
 

 4. UPDATE FROM SUB-GROUPS 

 

  (a) ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 
    

Iain MacKinnon, Environmental Health Manager advised that Robert 
Cowper has checked that there is no dataset which could  be used 
for improved reporting of ASB   Members of the subgroup will be 
invited to look at this issue, in the meantime anonymised figures can 
continue to be provided   
 
Robert Cowper is to come to the next Community Safety Forum with 
stats. 
 

  (b) VULNERABLE PEOPLE 
    

Social Work could not attend this meeting but will report at the next 
meeting. 
 
 

  (c) ENVIRONMENT SAFETY 
    

Iain MacKinnon and Councillor Louise Glen-Lee agreed to set up a 
meeting between the two of them and then report back to the next 
meeting. 
 

  (a) GREEN DOG WALKERS 
    

The Area Governance Officer gave an outline of the Green Dog 
Walkers scheme.  He advised this is done through the Scottish 
Government, and lead by Highland Council.  Some Community 
Councils in neighbouring authorities have adopted this model; 
however there is a nominal cost. 
 
After discussion, it was agreed not to progress this initiative since 

Page 3



many  responsible dog walkers already carry  spare bags and will 
offer these , the chair also wanted to verify that there was an 
identifiable problem in the Oban area.  It was agreed that this would 
be checked via the Members Portal. 
 

  (b) CLEAN UP SCOTLAND 
    

The Area Governance Officer gave an update to the Forum on the 
new “Clean up Scotland” promotion which is to be led by 
Streetscene.  He advised that in some areas there had been efforts 
to o get schools involved in this initiative (e.g by doing beach cleans 
etc). 
 

 6. GRASS FIRES 

   
It was noted that recent grassfires had  been worse than usual  due to the 
unseasonal weather  and had put an additional burden of fire service 
resources, however all stations had responded well as required and the 
fires had been contained. 
 
It was agreed that this item would be discussed at the next meeting and 
that stats would be provided.  It was also suggested that guidance on 
controlled burning might go out earlier in the year particularly if there is 
any likelihood of a repeat of the cold dry weather of this year. 
 

 7. NO COLD CALLING 

   
This Initiative is being led by Trading Standards and is intended to 
discourage doorstep cold calling and the associated crimes.  Community 
Councils and other bodies are being approached to see if they would like 
to take this initiative forward.  It was agreed that Councillor Glen-Lee and 
Stephen Doogan would report progress to the next meeting. 
 

 8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

   
Oban/Connel Back Road 
 
Murray Humphries from LochWatch Loch Awe provided a report to the 
Forum on the back road from Oban/Connel. 
 
He thinks the speed limit should be reduced to 30mph as it is a dangerous 
road. 
 
It was agreed that this paper would be passed to the Area Committee. 
 

 9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

   
It was agreed that the Area Governance Assistant would book a list of 
dates for the next year. 
 

 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Memorandum of Understanding – Management of Informal Camping 
 

Introduction this memorandum is intended to inform those Police and Council Officers and 
called upon to deal with issues arising from Wild Camping.  Land Managers may also be 
involved and this memo will be circulated via the National Farmers Union Scotland and 
Scottish Land and Estates to their members. 

Wild Camping is becoming more popular as the cost of tents etc. falls and as the number of 
campsites choosing to accept tents decreases; it can be over 20 miles drive to a commercial 
campsite in some areas. 

This document does not cover camping by travellers or gypsies which is a separate issue. 

The Land Reform (Scotland) Act 2003 gives the public a right of responsible non-
motorised access to land and water for recreation and passage.  The Act is supported by the 
Scottish Outdoor Access Code http://www.outdooraccess-scotland.com/outdoors-
responsibly/access-code-and-advice/soac/  

Scottish Outdoor Access Code - These rights include the right to wild camp and the 
following advice is given to the public, land managers and Local Authorities regarding 
responsible behaviour in the code. 

 

What is Wild Camping? 

· Small number of people, small tents, 
one or two nights 

· Behaving responsibly i.e. no litter, 
dogs under control, possibly in some 
locations a small fire, little noise 

· Generally not causing a problem, may 
be beside a layby in some locations 
away from houses or on a beach 

· May rarely include a horse drawn 
gypsy type caravan and horse 

What is not Wild Camping? 

· Camper vans, mobile homes and 
caravans - they refer to anywhere they 
are not on a recognised site as wild 
camping.  This is not recognised in law 
as such, it is simply free and may not 
be a problem in many instances. 

· Anyone behaving irresponsibly or in an 
anti-social manner i.e. heavy drinking, 
littering, vandalism, uncontrolled fires 
or in an area where they are disturbing 
people or livestock. 

· Large groups of people in one place 
staying for several nights. 

· Vehicles parked illegally or 
irresponsibly 

  

Agenda Item 5Page 7



Identifying irresponsible behaviour - The Land Reform (Scotland) Act 2003 states; 

Section 2 Access Rights to be exercised responsibly 

(1) A person has access rights only if they are exercised responsibly. 

(2) In determining whether access rights are exercised responsibly a person is to be 
presumed to be exercising access rights responsibly if they are exercised so as not to cause 
unreasonable interference with any of the rights (whether access rights, rights associated 
with the ownership of land or any others) of any other person, but— 

(a) a person purporting to exercise access rights who, at the same time— 

(i) engages in any of the conduct within section 9 below or within any byelaw 
made under section 12(1)(a)(i) below; (Section 9 excludes various activities 
including criminal activity, shooting, allowing a dog to worry stock or use of a 
motor vehicle unless used by someone with a disability) or 

(ii) does anything which undoes anything done by Scottish Natural Heritage 
under section 29 below, is to be taken as not exercising those rights 
responsibly; and (Section 29 signage erected by SNH to protect wildlife or 
habitats) 

(b) regard is to be had to whether the person exercising or purporting to exercise 
access rights is, at the same time— 

(i) disregarding the guidance on responsible conduct set out in the Access 
Code and incumbent on persons exercising access rights; or 

(ii) disregarding any request included or which might reasonably be implied in 
anything done by Scottish Natural Heritage under section 29 below. 

(3) In this section the references to the responsible exercise of access rights are references 
to the exercise of these rights in a way which is lawful and reasonable and takes proper 
account of the interests of others and of the features of the land in respect of which the rights 
are exercised. 

 
To Summarise - if an individual is damaging the interests of another person, wildlife 

or committing a crime they lose their right of responsible access and can be asked to 
leave by the land owner or the police. 

 
What happens if someone is behaving irresponsibly? -  For more minor problems and 
smaller groups the land owner may approach the individual or group and ask them to 
change their behaviour.  If they do not change their behaviour they can be asked to leave, if 
they do not the police should be called.  This should be done politely to avoid inflaming the 
situation and you be prepared to walk away if you are challenged. 

The Police have stated that they would prefer it if Land Managers contact them early in the 
day before things become more serious, when campers are still sober and likely to listen to 
reason. 

If the group is large, likely to be threatening, any kind of criminal activity is suspected or it is 
late at night the police should be called for assistance by land managers. 

  

Page 8



Police Response - If the Officers attending are unable to encourage the individuals to 
behave responsibly the following legislation is available, assuming no other offences have 
been committed; 

 
Scottish Outdoor Access Code Annex 1 - Existing criminal offences created by statute 

  

Page 9



Other offences are listed in Annex 1 and cover a range of offences including; 

· Control of dogs, worrying of livestock and dog fouling 

· Aggravated Trespass 

· Damage to Ancient Monuments, using metal detectors 

· Disturbance of animals, wild birds, and damage to some wild plants 

· Fishing without a permit, poaching 

· Lighting fires 

· Polluting Water 

Landowner’s and Manager’s Responsibilities - The removal of litter left on private land by 
a third party is the land owner’s responsibility.  The Police and Council Environment 
Wardens may be able to issue fixed penalty notices where they witness an individual 
dropping litter; however this will be difficult in practice.  Therefore it is in the landowner’s 
interest to monitor who is on their land, what they are doing and report it to the police if it is 
serious.  The land manager is advised to obtain vehicle registration numbers and if possible 
the names and addresses of users of their land if they are able to do so without putting 
themselves at risk.  These can be passed to the police if there is a problem. 

 

Sites in Argyll & Bute known to be popular for Wild Camping 

Bute & Cowal 

· Ardyne Point and Loch Striven 

· Lock Eck shore 

· Ardlamont and Ostel Bay 
 

Helensburgh & Lomond 

· Loch Long shore 

· Portincaple 

Mid Argyll Kintyre and the Islands 

· West Port Beach at Machrihanish 

· Clonaig – roadside to Skipness 

· Roadside locations along the A83 
between Arrochar and Furnace 

Oban Lorn & the Isles 

· Loch Awe shore line and Islands 

· Loch Etive 

 

Need for Directed Policing – there are locations including those above which have been 
popular in the past and the police may wish to patrol them regularly at weekends, particularly 
during good weather in the summer months.  A foot or 
mountain bike patrol in an area favoured by wild campers 
calling on those sites where there is litter or other reason to 
stop and chat will persuade people that the area is under 
observation.  Patrols around 9am on Saturday, Sunday and 
Bank Holiday Monday mornings calling on sites where there is 
evidence of litter and large fires may deter those intent on 
anti-social behaviour from retuning in the future.  They could 
also be encouraged to tidy up their site to avoid a similar “rude 
awakening” the following morning! 

Support from the Access Team – The Access Team can 
prepare and supply suitable signage to encourage people to 
camp responsibly based on work already done by SNH.  The 
team can also provide advice and support to Police Officers, 
communities and land managers.  

Page 10



Related Issues 

Mobile Homes & Campervans - Although there is no legal right to camp in a camper van, 
mobile home or caravan, officers should use their discretion and where the vehicle is away 
from housing, parked responsibly, no litter or fires are present and they are likely to stay for 
only one night it will not generally be appropriate to take any action. 

Mobile homes and camper vans are used increasingly by visitors to Argyll & Bute, do 
contribute to the local economy and are seldom a problem, most users are responsible.  If 
the current trend for increasing numbers of these vehicles continues local communities may 
wish to consider creating “Aires De Service” as French municipalities have done where 
some communities provide an overnight parking place with minimal facilities in an 
appropriate location in return for a small charge.  This kind of an approach has been piloted 
successfully on Tiree. 

Provision of Additional campsites – Where there is high demand for wild camping it may 
be appropriate to consider whether it would be appropriate to provide a formal campsite.   
This could be run by a land manager or a community as a social enterprise to provide 
facilities at a charge and manage the problem as a commercial venture. 

 

Contact Details 

Access Manager – Jolyon Gritten - 0154 660 4314 - Mobile: 0782 788 3167 

Email: Jolyon.Gritten@argyll-bute.gov.uk  

Access Officer – Douglas Grierson - 0154 660 4228 

Email: Douglas.Grierson@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

Development & Infrastructure Services 
Argyll & Bute Council 
Manse Brae Offices 
Lochgilphead 
ARGYLL 
PA31 8RT 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

1 

 

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
 

OBAN, LORN AND THE ISLES COMMUNITY 
SAFETY FORUM 

 

DEVELOPMENT & 
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 

 

26 AUGUST 2013 
 

 
OBAN/CONNEL BACK ROAD 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1  This report considers a request to reduce the speed limit along the Oban/Connel 

Back Road. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1 It is recommended that Members note the report. 
 
 
3. DETAILS 
 
3.1 Concerns have been raised through the Oban, Lorn and the Isles Community 

Safety Forum as traffic flow has increased along the Oban/Connel Back Road. 
 
3.2 Police Scotland have checked the area and monitored the road using a Sierzega 

device (equipment to measure vehicle speed and numbers). Police Scotland have 
confirmed that no speeding issues were detected. The report concluded: 

 
 The survey was carried out over a period of 2 days between Tuesday 4 June and 
Thursday 6 June 2013. The equipment was sited on a pole in a mid section of the 
road on a straight section of road. The weather conditions on those two days were 
good  without any rain. 
 
This section of road is a single track road with passing places and is subject to the 
national speed limit of 60mph. The geography of the road  acts as a natural speed 
deterrent with hidden views , gradients and tight turns. 
 
A total vehicle count of 463 vehicle movements were recorded with an 85th% speed 
of 39 mph and an average speed of 31 mph. The highest recorded speed was 50 
mph with a total of 11 vehicles travelling at 45mph or higher. 
 
Looking at the returned data there does not appear to have been any speeding 
issues.  

 
3.3 Given the data provided by Police Scotland, this section of road does not meet the 

criteria to support progressing any reduction in the speed limit. 

Agenda Item 8Page 13



 

 

 

 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
4. CONCLUSION 

 
4.1 This report considers a request to reduce the speed limit along the Oban/Connel 

Back Road. Following analysis of data provided by Police Scotland, it is not 
proposed that any changes to the existing speed limit be progressed. 

 
 
5. IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Policy National Policy provides a policy framework for setting 

local speed limits. 
   
5.2 Financial  None 
   
5.3 Legal None 
   
5.4 HR None 
   
5.5 Equalities  None known 
   
5.6 Risk None known 
   
5.7 Customer Services None known 
 
 
 
 
Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure 
August 2013 
                                                  
For further information contact: Jim Smith, Head of Roads and Amenity Services 
    Tel: 01546 604324  
  

  

 

Page 14


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 8 MAY 2013
	5 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: WILD CAMPING
	8 OBAN/CONNEL BACK ROAD

